
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

         5 February 2015 
 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 

 

ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 

will meet on 
Monday, 16 February 2015 

beginning at 
6:00 pm 

in 
Rooms 11/12/13 Eastleigh House, Upper Market Street, Eastleigh, SO50 9YN 

 
TO: Councillor Anne Winstanley (Chair), Councillor Daniel Clarke (Vice-Chair) 

Councillor Keith House Councillor Wayne Irish 
Councillor Godfrey G Olson Councillor Derek R Pretty 
Councillor Maureen A Sollitt Councillor Steve Sollitt 
Councillor Jane Welsh  

 
 
Staff Contacts: Cheryll Kemsley, Democratic Services Officer Tel:  023 8068 8112; 

Email: cheryll.kemsley@eastleigh.gov.uk 
 

  
 

RICHARD WARD 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

_____________________________________________________________________ 
 

Copies of this and all other agendas can be accessed via the 
Council's website - 

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings 
as well as in other formats, including Braille, audio, large print and 

other languages, upon request. 
 

Members of the public are invited to speak on general items at the 
start of the meeting, and on individual agenda items at the time the 
item is discussed.  To register please contact the Democratic 

Services Officer above 
Please be aware that Eastleigh Borough Council permits filming, 
sound recording and photography at meetings open to the public. 

 

 
Eastleigh House 

Upper Market Street 
Eastleigh SO50 9YN 



 

 

AGENDA 

 
1. Public Participation     
 
2. Minutes    (Pages 1 - 4)  

 To consider the Minutes of the meeting held on 24 November 2014.  
  
3. Apologies     
 
4. Declarations of Interest      

 Members are invited to declare interests in relation to items of business on the 
agenda.  Any interests declared will be recorded in the Minutes.  

  
5. Proposed Introduction of a Policy for New and Existing Drivers Wishing to be Dual 

Licensed Drivers    (Pages 5 - 8) 
 
6. Hackney Carriage Fare Increases    (Pages 9 - 20) 
 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
Monday, 29 June 2015 at 6:00 pm 

in Rooms 16/17 Eastleigh House, Upper 
Market Street, Eastleigh, SO50 9YN 

 
Your Council’s electronic news service - e-news  - 

 
Register your email address free with the Council and keep up to date with what’s 
happening in the Borough.  Simply select your topics and we will send you email 

updates with news as it happens including new Council Jobs, What’s On, Recycling, 
Transport plus lots more. www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews  

 
 



ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 
 

Monday, 24 November 2014  (6:00 pm – 6:20 pm) 
 
PRESENT: 
 
Councillor Winstanley (Chair); Councillors Clarke, Irish, Olson, Pretty, Mrs 
Sollitt, Sollitt and Mrs Welsh 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor House 
 

________________________________________ 
 

RESOLVED ITEMS (SUBJECT TO QUESTIONS ONLY) 
 

1. MINUTES 
 
RESOLVED - 
 
That the Minutes of the meeting held on 10 February 2014 be 
confirmed and signed by the Chair as a correct record. 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

3. CODE OF CONDUCT COMPLAINTS - ANNUAL REVIEW 
 
The Committee considered a report of the Head of Legal and Democratic 
Services which gave the annual position statement on Code of Conduct 
complaints received.  In July 2012 the Council adopted a new Code of 
Conduct and processes for dealing with standards matters as required by 
the Localism Act 2011. This included delegating the power to investigate 
complaints concerning Members potentially breaching the Code of 
Conduct to the Monitoring Officer. As part of this delegation it was agreed 
that the Monitoring Officer report to the Administration Committee annually 
on complaints received and actions taken. 
 
RESOLVED that the report be noted. 
 

4. AMENDMENT TO POLICY RELATING TO THE INSTALLATION OF 
CLOCK/CALENDAR CONTROLLED METERS IN HACKNEY 
CARRIAGES 
 
The Committee considered a report of the Head of Legal and Democratic 
Services which suggested an amendment to the existing Council policy on 
the installation of clock/calendar controlled meters in hackney carriages. 
Since the introduction of the lock down for clock/calendar controlled 
meters, the trade has made representation that some of their drivers are 
experiencing problems with the clock in the meter running fast. 

Agenda Item 2

1



 
RESOLVED – 
 
(1) That drivers be allowed to alter a clock manually themselves 

by 5 minutes adjustment for any 45 day period (which is the 
calendar set in the meter);  

(2) That drivers who are unable to manually reset their clocks be 
allowed to run up to 10 minutes fast and, within 28 days of this 
happening, the vehicle must then be presented to an 
authorised installer to reset the clock at the driver’s own 
expense; and 

(3) That these amendments come into force on Friday 2 January 
2015, so as to allow the trade and the authorised installer’s 
time to be informed of the amendment to the policy. 

5. PROPOSED POLICY FOR ENABLING CREDIT AND DEBIT CARD 
PAYMENTS IN HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLES 
 
The Committee considered a report of the Head of Legal and Democratic 
Services which sought approval of the proposed credit and debit cards 
payment policy. New legislation in the form of The Consumer Rights 
(Payment Surcharges) Regulations 2012 came into effect in April 2013; 
this bans traders from “charging consumers more than the cost borne by 
them for accepting a given means of payment”.  
 
Licensing Enforcement Officer, Shaun Eade, notified the Committee of a 
change to the conclusion of the report. The policy would now be set to 
come into effect in 2015, after a consultation period and advertising of the 
amendment of the tariff chart. 
 
RESOLVED – 
 
(1) That the proposed policy for allowing payment by credit and 

debit cards in taxis and private hire vehicles licensed by 
Eastleigh Borough Council be adopted; 
 

(2) That some taxis accept credit/debit cards for a charge of £1 or 
12.5% of the metered fare (whichever is the higher will be 
payable); and 

 
(3) That the policy comes into effect in 2015, following a 

consultation period and advertising of the amendment of the 
tariff chart. 

  
6. HACKNEY CARRIAGE 'INTENDED USE' POLICY 

 
The Committee considered a report of the Head of Legal and Democratic 
Services which proposed the agreement of an ‘intended use policy’ and 

2



that the handbook for drivers is updated. Licensing Officer Kim Scully 
explained, citing recent high court judgements, how vehicles licensed in 
one local authority are lawfully allowed to act as private hire vehicles 
anywhere else in the country. A policy concerning intended use is justified 
on grounds of public safety, in that if vehicles are predominantly operating 
outside of the area in which they are licenced, they are not accessible to 
enforcement officers carrying out spot checks. 
 
The proposed policy would affect the following types of application: new 
vehicle license, renewal of vehicle ownership and change of vehicle. 
Applicants would be expected to demonstrate a bona fide intention to ply 
for hire within the Borough of Eastleigh, with each case to be considered 
on its merits.  
 
RESOLVED – 
 
That the ‘intended use’ policy be implemented and the necessary 
updates to the driver handbook be made. 
 

7. DUAL LICENSING 
 
Nicki Moorhouse informed the Committee that further investigation into the 
practicalities of a new dual licensing policy was needed, and that she was 
drafting a new report to be presented to the next Administration Committee 
on 9th February 2015.  As such, this item was deferred. 
 

8. APPOINTMENT TO LICENSED TRANSPORT FORUM 
 
The Committee agreed that the current membership of Councillors Airey, 
M Hughes and Winstanley to the Licensed Transport Forum continue for 
the remainder of the 2014/2015 municipal year. 
 
 
 

3



4

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 

ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 

Monday 16 February 2015 

PROPOSED INTRODUCTION OF A POLICY FOR NEW AND 
EXISTING DRIVERS WISHING TO BE DUAL LICENSED DRIVERS.  

Report of the Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

It is recommended that a new policy is introduced from 1 April 2015 for new and 
existing drivers wishing to become Dual Licensed Drivers. 
 

Summary 
 
This report sets out the proposed policy, procedures and fees for new and existing drivers 
who wish to apply to become Dual Licensed Drivers, that is, the holder of Hackney 
Carriage and Private Hire licences at the same time.  

Statutory Powers 
 
Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 

Town Police Clauses Act 1847 

 

Introduction 

1. This report sets out the fees and procedures in regards to applicants that 
would like to apply to be the holder of Hackney Carriage and Private Hire 
Licence, (that is, be a Dual Licensed Driver). 

Background 

2. The trade has approached the Council for several years about the possibility 
of granting drivers a Dual Licence. Currently, a Hackney Carriage Driver 
cannot drive a plated Private Hire vehicle without holding a Private Hire Driver 
licence.  An applicant applying for the additional licence pays the full licence 
fee for both licences and has to produce the same documents on two 
separate occasions to the Licensing Department if they are not applied for at 
the same time. 
 

3. Officers are of the opinion that legislation only allows for two types of licences; 
a Hackney Carriage Licence and Private Hire Licence, both of which are 
governed by separate legislation. Conditions cannot be applied to a Hackney 

Agenda Item 5

5



 

 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 

Carriage driver licence following the case of Wathan v Neath & Port Talbot 
Borough Council [2002], therefore the Council will not be issuing Dual 
Licences, but will ensure the process to obtain an additional Licence is 
streamlined. 

4. This policy is being brought forward largely to enable Hackney Carriage 
drivers to be able to continue working if their Hackney Carriage vehicle is off 
the road i.e. accidents, breakdowns or repairs or unable to get a replacement 
vehicle. A licensed Private Hire driver when driving a Private Hire vehicle 
cannot accept fares unless it has been pre-booked through a licensed Private 
Hire Operator. The driver will be required to inform the Licensing department 
of the Operator that they will be working for as a Private Hire driver before 
they commence work for the Operator. 

5. If this policy is approved, an additional Licence could be offered to drivers at a 
reduced rate. Whilst this would reduce income to the Council it would be offset 
by more drivers applying to have both licences. 

The Proposed Policy 

Existing drivers who wish to apply for an additional licence 

6. If an existing Hackney Carriage driver wishes to apply for an additional Private 
Hire Licence it is recommended that they receive a 50% reduction of the 
application fee for the Private Hire licence, which at present would be £36.00 
for 1 year or £91.00 for 3 years. The majority of documents (Medical, DBS 
and DVLA) can be transferred over from their existing driver file if the 
documents are in date. 

7. A current Hackney Carriage Driver should not be required to take the Private 
Hire knowledge test as a Hackney Carriage driver will have already passed 
the Hackney Carriage test and therefore will already have a sufficient 
knowledge of the Borough. Therefore the Licence could be issued within 3 
working days if all the paperwork is in date. 

8. If an existing Private Hire Driver wishes to apply for an additional Hackney 
Carriage licence they should also pay a fee, reduced by 50%, for that second 
licence. Again, the Driver’s supporting documents would be transferred over 
from the Private Hire file as long as they are in date. 

9. A Private Hire driver will be required to take and pass the Hackney Carriage 
test, to show that they have a working knowledge of the Borough; therefore as 
well as the reduced fee of £36, the driver will have one free take of the test 
and then further retakes at £15.00. 

New Drivers 

10. All new applicants will have the opportunity to be able to apply for both a 
Hackney Carriage and a Private Hire licence at the same time. In this 
situation, the driver will need to pass the Hackney Carriage knowledge test. 

6



 

 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 

11. The applicant will be entitled to one free take of the Hackney Carriage 
knowledge test and then further retakes at £15.00. If a driver chooses to take 
the Private Hire test they will still have to pass the Hackney Carriage test 
before they can be issued with the Hackney Carriage licence, and would also 
have to pay for sitting any further tests if required. 

12. The applicant must conform to our current conditions as set down in the 
Handbook which sets out the documents required to make an application to 
the Council to be a Hackney Carriage or Private Hire driver. 

Fees  

13. If a new driver would like to apply for both a Hackney Carriage and Private 
Hire licence at the same time they will pay a total of £273 for three year 
licences and £109 for one year licences. 

14. If the licences expire on different dates, at annual renewal the applicant will 
pay the full rate of £73 for whichever licence expires first and then 50% for the 
second licence, which would be £36, for the next period of one year. 
Alternatively the driver may wish to apply for a three year licence at the 
reduced rate. 

15. There will be no refund for existing drivers that presently hold both Hackney 
Carriage and Private Hire Licences.  

Financial Implications  

16. The council currently has 24 drivers that currently hold both Hackney 
Carriages and Private Hire Licences which are valid for one year. There is a 
potential loss of income of £888.00 but this could be more than offset by the 
increased take up by drivers applying for a second licence, although at 
present we do not know what the proposed take up of an additional licence 
will be. 

Risk Assessment 

17. There are no risk implications arising from this report.  

Equality and Diversity Implications 

18. The Equality Act is not relevant to the decision in this report as the decision 
does not relate to eliminating discrimination, advancing equality of opportunity, 
or fostering good relations between different people.  An Equality Impact 
Assessment has not been carried out. 

Conclusion 

19. It is recommended that the Committee adopts this policy in respect of drivers 
who wish to hold both a Hackney Carriage and a Private Hire licence from the 
1 April 2015.  

7



 

 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 

 
RICHARD WARD 

Head of Legal and Democratic Services 
 

Date: 4 February 2015 
Contact Officer: Nicki Moorhouse  
Tel No: 023 8068 8125 
E-mail: nicki.moorhouse@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: 0 
 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information: 

None 

8



 

 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
 

ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 

MONDAY 16 February 2015 

HACKNEY CARRIAGE FARES INCREASE 

Report of the Head of Legal & Democratic Services 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

It is recommended that the new Hackney Carriage fare be implemented with effect 
from 1 April 2015 

 

Summary 
 
This report gives details of a fare increase sought for hackney carriages by the trade 

Statutory Powers 
 
Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 

 

Introduction 

1. The Council has received a request from the Hackney Carriage members of 
the Licensed Transport Forum for the Council to approve an increase in fares 
for hackney carriages.  Details of the existing fares are detailed in Appendix 1 
and the proposed fare is detailed in Appendix 2 and the National Averages 
are shown in Appendix 3. 

2. Any proposed fare increase must be advertised in at least one local 
newspaper giving a minimum of 28 days for objections to be received.  If no 
objections are received the revised table of fares will come into effect on a 
date after the expiration of the period specified in the notice.  If there are 
objections the Council must set a further date within 2 months of the original 
date on which the new fares will come into force following further 
consideration by Councillors. 

The proposed fare increase 

3. Members will recall that a Hackney Carriage tariff is the maximum that can be 
charged and that drivers are able to quote fees below what is stated on the 
meter. 

4. The last increase in fares took place in September 2011. 

Agenda Item 6

9



 

 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
 

5. Eastleigh is currently 94 out of 342 Councils in the table of fares recorded in 
the National league for January 2015, as published in the Private Hire and 
Taxi Monthly (Appendix 4). 

6. The primary reason for the trade’s request for the increase is that even with 
the current reduction in fuel cost all other costs have increased. The cost of 
servicing and replacement of parts for the vehicles, insurance premiums and 
for those drivers working from the local railway stations the cost of obtaining  
SW Trains permits has increased every year by 4% to a current figure of:  
Both stations permits £622, Southampton (Airport) Parkway permit £462 and 
Eastleigh Town permit £342. 

7. As set out in paragraph 2 there are regulations about advertising proposed 
fare increase. 

Financial Implications 

8. Cost of £225.06p will be incurred in the public advertising of the proposed fare 
increases in The Hampshire Independent newspaper, and printing cost of the 
new fare tariff charts for each hackney carriage (103) of £72, these costs will 
be met from existing budgets. The reason that the Council has to print the 
new tariff charts is a legal requirement and the Hackney Carriages must 
display them in the vehicles for the customers to be able to read. The tariff 
charts can be viewed on the Council web site and in the drivers’ handbook. 

Risk Assessment 

9. There are no risk implications arising from this report.  It will once 
implemented provide fairness for the travelling public. 

Equality and Diversity Implications 

10. The Equality Act is not relevant to the decision in this report as the decision 
does not relate to elimination discrimination, advancing equality or opportunity 
or fostering good relations between different people. An Equality Impact 
Assessment has not been carried out. 

Conclusion 

11. It is recommended that the Administration Committee agrees to the fare 
increase with a start date of 1 April 2015. This will allow time for the 
advertising of the proposed fares to be displayed, the meter installers getting 
the new chips for the meters from the meter manufacture and installing them 
for the trade. 

 

 

 

10



 

 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
 

 

 

 

 

RICHARD WARD 
Head of Legal & Democratic Services 

Date: 5 February 2015 
Contact Officer: Shaun EADE 
Tel No: 023 8068 8128 
e-mail: shaun.eade@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: 4 
 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report.  This list does not include any published 
works or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information: 

Taxi and Private Hire monthly – January 2015 issue. 

11



12

This page is intentionally left blank



 Appendix 1 

CURRENT FARE CHART (as of September 2011)  

TARIFF 1 (Monday to Saturday 7am -11pm) 

£2.80 Flat + First 1/6th of a mile 

£2.80p 

Each subsequent 1/12th or part thereof    0.15p 

TARIFF 2 (Night Rate 11pm -7am. All day Sunday, Bank  Holidays 

and from 8pm on Christmas Eve and New Year’s Eve) 

 

 

£3.00 Flat + First 1/10th of a mile £3.00p 

Each subsequent 1/10th or part thereof   0.25p 

TARIFF 3  

Hiring during Christmas Day, Boxing Day and from midnight on New 

Year’s Eve until 7am New Year’s day is Double Tariff 1 

 

WAITING TIME  

Tariff 1 for each minute or part 

Tariff 2 for each minute or part 

Tariff 3 for each  minute or part 

Extra charges 

For each person in excess of 4 

Soiling of carriage 

 

0.20p 

0.25p 

0.30p 

 

£1.00 

£65.00 

 

Present rates 1 mile 2 miles 3 miles 4 miles 5 miles 

Tariff 1 4.30 6.00 7.70 9.40 11.10 

Tariff 2 5.10 7.50 9.90 12.30 14.70 

 

13



14

This page is intentionally left blank



 Appendix 2 

PROPOSED FARE CHART   

TARIFF 1 (Monday to Saturday 7am -11pm) 

£2.90 Flat + First 1/10th of a mile 

£2.90p 

Each subsequent 1/10th or part thereof    0.20p 

TARIFF 2 (Night Rate 11pm -7am. All day Sunday, Bank  Holidays 

and from 8pm on Christmas Eve and New Year’s Eve) 

 

 

£3.00 Flat + First 1/11th of a mile £3.00p 

Each subsequent 1/11th or part thereof   0.25p 

TARIFF 3  

Hiring during Christmas Day, Boxing Day and from midnight on New 

Year’s Eve until 7am New Year’s day- Double Tariff 1 

 

WAITING TIME  

Tariff 1 for each minute or part 

Tariff 2 for each minute or part 

Tariff 3 for each  minute or part 

Extra charges 

For each person in excess of 4 

Soiling of carriage 

 

0.25p 

0.30p 

0.35p 

 

£1.00 

£65.00 

 

The revised increase will make the following increase to the following journeys: 

Proposed 

rates 

1 mile 2 miles 3 miles 4 miles 5 miles 

Tariff 1 4.70 6.70 9.70 11.70 13.70 

Tariff 2 5.50 8.25 11.0 13.75 16.00 

 

15



16

This page is intentionally left blank



THE NATIONAL  AVERAGE  FARES                            Appendix 3 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

NATIONAL AVERAGE FARES Fares Increase in tariff if 

agreed 

National Average  Flag at T1 is  £2.74  

Current Flag at T1 in Eastleigh 1/12th  £2.80  

Proposed Flag at T1 for Eastleigh 1/10th  £2.90 0.10p 

National Average  Flag at T2 is  £3.61  

Current Flag at T2 in Eastleigh 1/10th  £3.00  

Proposed flag at T2 for Eastleigh 1/11th  £3.00 No change 

National Average 1 Mile fare at T1 is  £3.79  

Current 1 Mile fare at T1 in Eastleigh  £4.30  

Proposed 1 Mile fare at T1 for Eastleigh £4.70 0.40p 

National Average 1 Mile fare at T2 is £4.98  

Current 1 Mile fare at T2 in Eastleigh £5.10  

Proposed 1 Mile fare at T2 for Eastleigh £5.50 0.40p 

National Average 2 Mile fare at T1 is  £5.65  

Current 2 miles fare at T1 for Eastleigh  £6.00  

Proposed 2 Miles fare at T1 for Eastleigh  £6.70 0.70p 

National Average  2 Mile fare at T2 is  £7.40  

Proposed 2 Mile fare at T2 for Eastleigh £8.25 0.75p 

National Average 5 Mile fare at T1 is £11.22  

Proposed 5 Miles fare at T1 for Eastleigh £13.70 £2.60p 

National Average 5 Mile fare at T2 is  £14.68  

Proposed 5 Miles fare at T2 for Eastleigh £16.00 £1.30p 

17



THE NATIONAL  AVERAGE  FARES                            Appendix 3 

 

 

AREA FARE AVERAGES 

Tariff 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tariff 2 

 Flag 1 mi. 2mi 5 mi 10 mi 

East Anglia £3.91 £5.06 £7.35 £14.16 £25.54 

Midlands £3.58 £4.86 £7.18 £14.07 £26.02 

North £3.03 £4.35 £6.53 £13.08 £23.99 

South £4.05 £5.79 £8.60 £16.71 £30.64 

Southwest £3.76 £5.44 £8.29 £16.91 £31.27 

Scotland £3.43 £4.32 £6.27 £12.13 £21.88 

Wales £3.57 £4.20 £6.58 £13.66 £25.46 

Nat Avg. £3.61 £4.98 £7.40 £14.68 £26.96 

 

 Flag 1 mi. 2mi 5 mi 10 mi 

East Anglia £3.00 £3.93 £5.70 £10.99 £19.85 

Midlands £2.70 £3.67 £5.43 £10.66 £19.40 

North £2.44 £3.50 £5.22 £10.36 £18.99 

South £2.94 £4.20 £6.18 £12.17 £22.51 

Southwest £2.72 £4.02 £6.15 £12.51 £23.18 

Scotland £2.73 £3.52 £5.29 £10.59 £19.49 

Wales £2.82 £3.32 £5.16 £10.65 £19.79 

Nat Avg. £2.74 £3.79 £5.65 £11.22 £20.63 

18



19



20

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5 Proposed Introduction of a Policy for New and Existing Drivers Wishing to be Dual Licensed Drivers
	6 Hackney Carriage Fare Increases
	current fare chart (appendix1)
	Proposed fare chart (appendix 2)
	national average fare appendix 3
	appendix 4


